1 Duloe Rd – The Windmill      Updated April 2005
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Ref/Address ___1 Duloe Road          Duloe Mill 

See also 363 Great North Rd and the cottages.

This building is the old windmill and ground floor building converted into a home.

Listed buildings register – Grade 2

· Early C19 tower mill now a dwelling. 

· Four storeys with later two storey extension. 

· Conical mansard roof of bitumenised canvas. 

· Colour washed brick. 

· Gauged segmental brick arches to casement windows with gabled hoods. 

· Modern entrance to extension. 

Info from Linda Reed – (from where)

‘Duloe Tower Mill is a large and solidly built tower mill of a rather quaint and unusual design. The tower is of brick 24ft 6in. at the bottom, 20 ft across at the top or curb, with a wall thickness of 28 inches tapering to 18 inches at the curb. This was of wood, forming a track for the cap to turn on. Its almost cylindrical tower and conical cap are rare. Whilst there are some mills with similar towers in Somerset the conical cap was unique in Bedfordshire. It has since been replaced by a more modern domed roof.’

A post mill stood on this site before this mill was built.

1799 Enclosure Act/Award 

This mill and land belonged to Josh. Arnold. The land stretched from the Great North Rd as far as Kings Villa (21 Duloe Rd).

Hurricane
A gale of wind of unusual violence passed over this neighbourbood on Saturday evening last (24th October 1868).  One of the sails of Mr Topham's windmill was blown down, and several large trees in the surrounding neighbourhood shared the same fate but beyond these slight catastrophies we have heard of no serious damage (in this district at least) has been caused by the hurricane. 
For all details up to 1910 look at 363 Great North Rd.
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1910 Land Valuation map – the millers house is 363 Great North Rd –  the one with a path to the Great North Rd
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1925 Land Valuation Map

This map does not show a building attached to Duloe Windmill.

Cyril Ibbett worked at the mill in the 1920’s while it was owned by Albert Green. 

In Dr Pattersons notes he recalls that the mill had lain idle since 1918 with the timber being rotten and full of wood worm.

1925 Land Valuation
  Ref LVA/C216/46 and 47

   
Owner  -  A. J. Green

 
Occupier  of this property –  A.J. Green

Ref 46 – 

House, Buildings and Premises.  Brick and Slate.

2 Reception, Kitchen, Scullery, 3 Bedrooms, 1 Box Room, Bathroom & w.c.

Glasshouse – heated, Wash house poor, Coal Barn poor, Hen House, Cart Shed falling down.

Old Cottage as store place, very little used.

2 bay Hovel.

Ref 47 – Mill and Premises.

10 ½ B H P  Paraffin, T. C. engine driving 2 pair of stones.  Grinds 6 bushels per hour.  Grinds on commission.  Keeps no accounts.

Old windmill – disused.                                                       

Beds Magazine Vol III p. 350

The oak wind-shaft, which is 23 inches thick at the head, carries a 10 ft brake wheel and was driven by four single-shuttered sweeps fitted with leading boards to lessen wind resistance, their total span of 60 feet developing sufficient power to drive three pairs of stones. The plain cone- shaped cap carrying the sweeps was automatic and was headed to wind by an 8 ft wind-vane. It was surmounted by an embossed weathercock said to have come from Keysoe Church.

Although the whole property was bought by Dr Patterson, some residents believe that Mr Green continued to work the mill and live at 363 Great North Rd. One resident can recall the windmill sails still turning in the early 1940’s while she waited for the school bus – were they just turning in the wind ? – it seems unlikely from Dr Pattersons notes that the windmill was actually working.
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Duloe Mill, before and after adaptation




According to the plans the extension was on the SW side of the windmill. However it was built on the north west side and Pam says that it was possible that Dr Patterson just decided to have it put in a different place.

The present owners think that the steam engine was housed in the shed which has an assortment of mill workings built into the fabric of the shed.

The Pattersons were the first people to move into the old windmill and actually live there.

C.H.W. Childs recalls that Dr Cyril Patterson , a local doctor and one of his friends, bought the derelict windmill intending to convert it to a dwelling for himself and his wife around 1947. (see also references to Cyril Childs at Woodlands, Cross Hall Road). 

The mill was completely derelict inside but the outer walls were in good condition. One of the first problems was to remove the main timbers of the two horizontal sails. These timbers were very heavy and Cyril was concerned that if they were sawn off one at a time at the boss then the weight of the remaining one would twist the boss and the horizontal spindle out of place. After much consideration he decided to blast each timber off simultaneously with dynamite – which was successful. 

After negotiations with an official at the Ministry of Works Cambridge Office, they eventually obtained a building licence for the maximum allowed of £1,300.00.

Work went ahead clearing out the old floors internally and removing the heavy grinding stones for future use.

The plans were drawn up for Dr Lloyd Patterson –  Cyril’s full name was Cyril Francis Lloyd Patterson. 
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The plans for the conversion were deposited at Beds Archives. They were approved 21st December 1946. On the ground floor of the extension was a kitchen and the ground floor of the windmill was the living room. The first floor of the extension was the bathroom and the floors in the windmill were bedrooms. 
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The London architects drawings and specification called for three new floors of 4 inch reinforced concrete with half inch reinforcing bars at 4 inch centres each way, let into the walls. However the steel was virtually unavailable after the war. 

Cyril Childs says that Dr Patterson’s wife Phyllis Joan (known as Joan) came to the rescue. Her family owned a steel works in the north of England (possibly Rotherham) and she sent the requirements to her brother who was managing director of the firm. Detailed drawings were sent and two or three weeks later a large lorry arrived with all the necessary steelwork – all the right lengths and the ends all hooked.

Dr Patterson also wanted to retain the very large metal wheel  fitted with hardwood cogs which drove the spindles of the grind stones, This cog wheel hung from a large timber member which reached up into the roof and engaged with gears from the spindle to which the sails were attached. This member had to be removed after a support was provided for the wheel from the ground level.

The big wheel was left on the bedroom ceiling.

At that stage Cyril Childs was fortunate in obtaining the services of an extremely good carpenter and joiner, who was just finishing his apprenticeship in London and wanted to come and live with his parents in St Neots.

Cyril recalls that much ingenuity was required throughout the works. Mrs Patterson wanted two of the very heavy grindstones with a new timber casing for her dressing table in the main bedroom on the first floor, so these had to be heaved up through the window with block and tackle. Much of the equipment available today was not available then.

A new kitchen and bathroom was provided by a small extension on the side of the mill. The mill was wired for electricity, water was on tap and a septic tank was provided as there was no mains sewerage.

On the ground floor was the lounge, next floor main bedroom, next floor another bedroom and top floor was split into two bedrooms.

Information from present owners -

Originally the mill had five floors but because building regulations stipulated the height of the ceilings the mill was only allowed to have four floors. The floors were once made of wood but they now had to be of concrete.

Work proceeded well and the Pattersons moved in with their family from their house at The Priory in St Neots – the houses backing onto the river. The couple had two children – Lindy and John who went to boarding school.

They moved around 1948 recalls Cyril Childs.

The porch around the front door was not listed on the 1947 plans but was there in 1985.

1948 Electoral Register –
no sign of the Pattersons





1950 Electoral Register – 
Cyril F. Patterson
husband





Phyllis Patterson
wife

The garden was quite large and in the western part a large ornamental pond was dug out with an island in the middle. There was also a summer house built in the garden and John Gayer-Anderson often stayed there in the 1950’s. He was a local artist and sculptor from Waterbeach near Cambridge. Dr Pattersons notes refer to Stanley Orchart painting the large mural in the shed.

Dr Patterson wrote notes about the workings of the mill and made a small museum in a shed which included photographs and pictures of mills, a birds egg collection, bits and pieces that he found while making the garden – fossils, clay pipes, pottery, glass, axe heads – also parts of the mill, an old plough and other artefacts.

Local residents also recall the beautiful old Romany caravan that stood in the garden near the water garden. The plan of the garden in 1985 also show a tennis court.

1955 Electoral Register – 
Cyril F. Patterson






Phyllis Patterson


The surgery was in the small barn facing the road – which was once the three cottages.

Phyllis left Dr Patterson and went to live in Cambridge taking Lindy with her.

1960 Electoral Register –
Cyril F. Patterson


1965 Electoral Register -
Cyril F. Patterson
husband





Elizabeth M.C. Patterson
2nd wife

There was a gypsy caravan in the garden for a while.
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The children were Lindy and John – both may have gone to boarding school.

Dr Patterson retired in 1968. He died in January 1980 at the age of 74 years (Hunts Post).

1974 – the windmill became a listed building.

A plaque in the mill says that Mr and Mrs Cotton owned the mill from 1980 to 1997. The Pattersons presumably moved into the Gate House before 1980 as Dr Pattersons obituary says that he died there.
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Documents show that the windmill was disused in Jan 1986. 

In 1985/86 there were plans to extend the accommodation with the addition of a laundry and kitchen. Mr R.J. Cotton got permission to erect a bungalow and house on windmill land – it is not sure which buildings this refers to.

There were apple trees on the site – good for making teeth in the cog wheels.

The present owners bought the mill in 1997
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